

Minutes of the meeting of the Attleborough Town Council Environment Committee

Held on Monday 20th November 2023 at 7.00 pm

Held at the Town Hall, Queens Square.

Present:

Cllr T Taylor – presiding
In attendance – Sharon Smyth -Locum Town Clerk
Anne Willett – Town Clerk Assistant – Minute Taker
Cllr V Dale, Cllr S Mackinnon, Cllr A Westby, Cllr J Taylor, Cllr S Taylor, Cllr J Ellis
Public x 7

<u>057.23) Chairman Welcome</u> – Cllr T Taylor welcomed everyone to meeting and apologised for being a minute late starting the meeting

058.23 Apologies for absence –

Cllr De Souza, Cllr Leslie, Cllr Bond, Cllr Wenham

059.23) Declarations of Interest

- a) To receive and consider declarations of interest in items below Cllr T Taylor Item 11
- b) To receive and consider dispensations in respect of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests None received

060.23) Public Participation -

- Resident queried giving her report regarding Item 13 on agenda
- Cllr T Taylor confirmed Standing Orders could be suspended before the item allowing public to speak.
- Resident reported fence hanging across pavement at what used to be an Off Licence
- Town Clerk would report this

061.23) Minutes of the Environment Committee 16th October 2023

On the motion of Cllr Mackinnon, seconded by Cllr Westby, it was **RESOLVED** to approve the minutes of the meeting of the 16th October 2023.

062.23) Actions Arising From Outstanding Actions –

Min 012.21 Locations for cycle racks and picnic benches at Gaymers to be confirmed Cycle Racks dependent on Item 8. Picnic benches at Gaymers pending site visit.

Min 008.22 Jubilee Wood - Variation of obligation. Solicitor requested (Rogers and Norton) Variation of Obligation still to do and suggest Rogers & Norton act as solicitor.

All surveys have been commissioned. Going to ask Wildlife Trust for a quote to carry out survey as well for next agenda.

Min 035.22 4 New Welcome/Gateway to Attleborough Signs Quotations – Agenda Item

Min 016.23 Decoy Common – Had a site visit on 13 Nov with Chloe Gordon and a note of Cllr S Taylor's comment regarding clearing out ditches at Decoy Common was made and would be looked into.

Min 017.23 Cemetery Hedges Update – No adverse comments received so far.

Min 019.23 Queens Square Cinema – An amount has been written into the budget provisionally for approval.

Min 021.23 Provision for Youth Club storage + venue - new location suggested at Old Library site. Contacted NCC but they are making use of this site so we are unable to use it even if temporarily. Cllr S Taylor asked if it is still registered as a Community Asset? We definitely need to support as a Community Asset.

Min 028.23 Benches at Old Post Office Update – No response from the owner so intend to write again to let them know ATC intend to refresh the benches.

Min 029.23 Church Wall – Report costing has been approved (Clerk Chairman discretionary spent) of £250 quoted by Cllr Andrew Westby - Cllr Westby confirmed report will be presented to Council this week.

063.23) Correspondence -

The Clerk explained the path at Gaymers Meadow had been closed off for the time being until Grounds staff can have a look at it. Also, been in contact with the Football Club but more investigations needed into records of correspondence from previous years back about putting in possible drainage there. So hopefully be able to work together with the Football Club and find a solution. This is for information tonight and discussions will continue.

064.23) ATFC Gaymers Goal Compound -

Cllr T Taylor explained the compound had been included in the lease, from a site visit meeting the suggestion was it would be a temporary Heras fencing structure that could be removed at end of the tenancy. Cllr S Taylor informed members the Football Club had stated twice the compound was included in their lease but this had not been documented anywhere and it had been apparent on this occasion the then Clerk and a Cllr had acted outside of the Standing Orders and also that the Town Council had not resolved to include any plan in the ATCF lease. Cllr S Taylor stated the compound has got to be there as it is in the lease but could it be screened so it blends in better? The whole lease has been a farce that Councillors didn't agree to and bringing the lease for two members to sign, I think is awful.

On the motion of Cllr S Taylor, seconded by Cllr J Taylor, it was

RESOLVED – to proceed on the basis that it is a temporary structure that can be removed as and when the lease comes to an end and that it is screened appropriately so it is considerate to its surroundings.

On the motion Cllr S Taylor, seconded by Cllr J Taylor, it was **RESOLVED** to suspend Standing Orders for member of public to speak.

Football Club stated to members he wanted to make it clear that the request with regards to the compound was actually to vary the lease and include within it a piece of tarpaulin on the ground so the grass didn't grow around the base and into the netting making it difficult for maintenance from the Grounds Team that's where the original request came from for a membrane to go down with the Heras fencing. The variation we are asking for is a temporary membrane to go down. It was suggested willow fencing used so it can be dressed in keeping with its' surroundings. Cllr T Taylor stated that in agreeing the compound that was part of the written request I think that has received our agreement, is that fair to say members? The membrane as part of the compound now has our agreement.

065.23) Town Hall Accessibility -

Currently one of our caretakers is looking into the issues previously discussed and we will be putting forward some prices. He has been looking at a sound system, front door bell, lift and lighting in the toilets. During the discussion it was noted that to make it easier to gain access to the Town Hall a small bus from Watton now drops off residents at the rear of the Town Hall so they can attend a Tuesday coffee morning. To improve access via unadopted lane to Town Hall is was suggested having a pathway wheelchair width put in but first consult with residents living in area concerned. Will await written report.

<u>066.23) Signage requested to advertise Dodd Rd PO</u> –

As this is a valuable asset to the Town if it is within the Clerks' discretionary allow her to progress

067.23 Consideration for Development of Land at St Edmunds Close to Appoint a Solicitor –

On the motion of Cllr Dale, seconded by J Taylor, it was **RESOLVED** to appoint Rogers & Norton as solicitor Cllr T Taylor abstained

068.23) Update on the S106 Application for the Play Area Improvement at Lomond Road.

Waiting for quotations but also hoping to incorporate a sensory maze at either Lomond Road or Birch Drive. There is a deadline for application of January 2024 members happy for Clerk to progress.

On the motion of Cllr Mackinnon, seconded by Cllr Dale, it was

RESOLVED - to suspend Standing Orders for member of public to speak.

069.23) Wilder Stations Project Request for donation of 180 Tree Guards for Native Hedgerows

Jane Doughty gave a report on their request for funding towards the cost of creating hedging and gardens at the new Station Car Park. Working together with the Heritage Group to make the station a beautiful area and something Attleborough can be proud of. Although all of the donation budget had already been allocated it was suggested to use some of the remaining Book Sale funds.

On the motion Cllr Dale, seconded by Cllr Mackinnon, it was

RESOLVED to donate £86 for tree saplings + £164.99 for tree guards' total amount £250.99

070.23) Second Public Participation (10 Minutes)

- Member of ATFC suggested that as side gate entrance to Gaymers had been locked more people would be using main entrance and this may need attention to stop it from becoming churned up and muddy
- The Clerk would speak to the Grounds Staff
- Resident queried Members Officers Protocol prohibits speaking negatively about Council Officers. Does that extend to former Council Officers?
- Cllr S Taylor replied if you're concerned put in a complaint to Breckland I will happily accept another one from you.
- Resident queried what training did Cllrs have with regard to conflict?
- A new Councillor is offered Induction Training but we could look at inhouse training.
- Resident suggested Cllr should be supplied with Spit Kits and body cameras
- One of our Cllrs had been assaulted in the past
- Before the last administration we had training regularly

071.23) Items for the next Agenda

Gateway Signs for next Full Council

Meeting Closed 7.45pm